Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee
Date: Monday, 22nd October, 2018
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath
Councillor Rob Appleyard
Councillor Michael Norton
Councillor Geoff Ward (Chair)
Co-opted members non-voting: Councillor Lin Patterson (Bath and North East Somerset
Council), Paul Hooper (Independent) and Graham Page (Independent)
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Marie Todd
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG
Telephone: 01225 394414
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:
Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and
Midsomer Norton public libraries.
2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.
3. Recording at Meetings:The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.
Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please
make yourself known to the camera operators.
To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera
operator.
The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.
4. Public Speaking at Meetings
The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the
scheme:
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure
When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.
6. Supplementary information for meetings
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Decision Making Powers of the Sub-Committee:
1. To discharge the Council’s role as Corporate Trustee for the Alice Park Trust, in line with
Charities Commission guidance. The objects of the Alice Park Trust are for use as a
public park and children’s recreation ground.
2. To agree the Trust’s annual budget and business plan.
3. To approve the use of any reserves.
4. To agree the Trust’s annual accounts.
5. To receive and respond to the audit findings relating to the annual accounts.
6. To receive reports on the effective day to day management and financial performance of
the Trust.
7. To allow interested parties to give their view on the performance and direction of the
Trust.

Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee - Monday, 22nd October, 2018
at 6.00 pm in the Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath
AGENDA

1.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out on the
Agenda.

3.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:
(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
(b) The nature of their interest.
(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)
Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

5.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
The Chair will announce any items of urgent business accepted since the agenda was
prepared under the Access to Information provisions.

6.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

7.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 JUNE 2018 (Pages 7 - 12)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2018.

8.

ALICE PARK DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Pages 13 - 18)
To consider the draft development plan which was updated following the members’
site visit in July.

9.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2017/18 (Pages 19 - 46)
To consider and sign off the annual accounts and annual report for 2017/18. The SubCommittee raised a number of queries at the last meeting (set out in minute number
9). The Group Accountant will respond to these questions at the meeting.

10.

SKATE PARK UPDATE
Mark Cassidy, Parks and Bereavement Services Manager, will give an update on the
skatepark project. A range of options for the skatepark, produced by the designers,
will be circulated at the meeting for the Sub-Committee’s consideration.

11.

ANNUAL REPORT TO THE CHARITABLE TRUST BOARD (Pages 47 - 52)
To consider the draft annual report from the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee to be
submitted to the Charitable Trust Board.

12.

JOIN UP OF FOOTPATHS
CIL funding has been granted for the joining up of footpaths within Alice Park. The
Board is asked to consider how it wishes to proceed with this project.

13.

SIGNAGE AND LOGO
To receive an update on the new logo for use on signage in Alice Park.

14.

FLAGPOLE IN ALICE PARK
To consider proposals to erect a flagpole in Alice Park. The Chair will report on this
item.

15.

PARK HERITAGE INFORMATION BOARDS
To consider a proposal to erect two heritage information boards in the park. The Chair
will report on this item.

16.

FUTURE MEETING DATES
To agree future meeting dates for 2019. Possible dates are:

Monday 18 February, 25 February or 11 March
Monday 10, 17 or 24 June
Monday 14, 21 or 28 October
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Marie Todd who can be contacted on
01225 394414.

Agenda Item 7

Bath and North East
Somerset Council

ALICE PARK TRUST SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held
Monday, 25th June, 2018, 6.00 pm
Councillor Rob Appleyard
Councillor Michael Norton
Councillor Geoff Ward (Chair)

-

Bath and North East Somerset Council
Bath and North East Somerset Council
Bath and North East Somerset Council

Councillor Lin Patterson
Paul Hooper

-

Bath and North East Somerset Council (non-voting)
Independent Member (non-voting)

1

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
He updated members on the following developments since the last meeting:





2

A resident had sent an email expressing concern that waste collected from
the bins in Alice Park was not being recycled.
The current signs in the park referred to “Bath and North East Somerset
Council” rather than the “Alice Park Trust”. Officers were looking into the
rebranding of signage within the park.
He had approved expenditure to remove a wasp or bees nest adjacent to the
tennis courts.
He had spoken to the organiser of the boules activities in Bath regarding the
playing of boules in Alice Park.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
The Democratic Services Officer explained the emergency evacuation procedure.

3

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION
There were no apologies for absence.

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

5

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
There were no urgent items.

1

Page 7

6

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS
Tony Hickman, proprietor of the Alice Park Café, stated that he had carried out an
online poll regarding the pond in Alice Park. 344 votes had been cast and 95% of
respondents said that they would prefer to retain or refurbish the pond as opposed to
filling it in.

7

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 APRIL 2018
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 April 2013 were confirmed and signed as a
correct record.
Paul Hooper stated, as a matter arising, that he had received feedback regarding the
sandpit replenishment. When children were playing in the sandpit some of the
debris which had previously settled at the bottom had risen to the top and it would
have been helpful if this had been cleared away before adding new sand. Councillor
Appleyard stated that the contractors had attempted to clear as much as they could
and thanked officers for organising the replenishment.

8

MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE
The sub-committee considered a report regarding the Alice Park Management Plan
2016-2022 which was agreed by members on 27 March 2017. The sub-committee
was asked to review the Management Plan and revise it as necessary to reflect
current priorities.
It was noted that the park suffered from a lack of maintenance and that work such as
painting and repairs could be carried out. It was possible that officers could work
with the Probation Service to arrange for some work to be undertaken to stabilise the
fabric of the park.
Members acknowledged the need to plan work in the park in a strategic manner.
They noted that it would be helpful to have an idea of costs for each area of work. It
was pointed out that the Trust did not always need to ask the Parks Department to
carry out the necessary work but that other avenues could be explored. Councillor
Appleyard pointed out that the Trust could co-opt additional members onto the subcommittee to assist with specific projects if necessary.
Paul Hooper stressed the importance of consulting with users of the park to ensure
they were on board with any future proposals.
RESOLVED: To arrange a site visit in the park over the summer to review the
Management Plan and to agree future priorities.

9

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2017/18
The sub-committee considered a report setting out the Statement of Accounts and
the Trustees’ Annual Report to 31 March 2018.
The sub-committee asked questions relating to the accounts as follows:
2

Page 8








What work is covered in the figure being spent on maintenance of public
conveniences?
What work is covered by the figure being spent on play equipment
maintenance? The Parks and Bereavement Services Manager confirmed that
this would primarily cover the cost of weekly inspections of the equipment.
What is the difference between restricted and unrestricted funds?
What does the £13,741 rental income relate to?
What is the actual value of the cottage in Alice Park and should the current
value be listed in the accounts?
What income is generated by the public conveniences?

The sub-committee felt that the figure of £39,207 for payments was high. Edward
Dawson, Group Accountant agreed to provide a list of maintenance that has taken
place.
RESOLVED: To note the report and to request that the Group Accountant provides
a response to the queries listed above at the next meeting.
10

SKATE PARK DESIGN AND UPDATE
The sub-committee considered a report giving an update on the skate park to be
provided in Alice Park.
The Parks and Bereavement Services Manager reported that the budget was now
agreed and Canvas were working on the skate park design. Confirmation was
required that the additional £30k provided by the local community was held in the
Trust account.
A lease had been drafted and would be passed to Property Services to be
progressed. The Trust was still required to obtain an independent valuation from a
surveyor.
In response to a query Cllr Appleyard agreed to speak to Michael Hewitt, Legal
Services Manager, to request guidance on the payment of a nominal rent for the
siting of the skate park.
RESOLVED:
(1) To agree to a nominal lease of the land in light of the council taking full
responsibility for the items on the leased area of land for the duration of the
lease (the location to be used will be imminently confirmed and this to be
formalised by Property Services).
(2) To agree that the council continues to develop the preliminary outline design
(the site has been surveyed/measured to progress this).
(3) To note that further time action points are:



Initial design and cost to show what is available within the budget with a
preferred location in the area specified.
Internal and external consultation and feedback.
3

Page 9




11

Detailed design and final cost for sign off.
Contract documents.
Site start and sign off.

PATIO AREA AROUND CAFE UPDATE
The sub-committee considered a report regarding the use of the patio area around
the Alice Park Café. This matter had been raised at the last meeting.
The report set out information regarding the terms of the café lease including the
area which may be used by the café. The report suggested a hire rate which could
be levied for temporary hire of the patio area by the concession.
Councillor Appleyard acknowledged the excellent service provided by the café and
felt that it should be possible to find a compromise. He proposed that a one-off
payment should be agreed by the Trust for the use of this area on up to 10
occasions as a temporary arrangement. This would enable parties to be organised
by the café and would also prevent excessive use of this area.
Pau Hooper suggested that this should be considered as part of the site visit to Alice
Park which would shortly be taking place. He stressed the difference between
obstruction and control and expressed concern about the number of fitness
organisations using the park for commercial purposes. The Chair confirmed that this
type of usage would be dealt with.
Councillor Norton felt that the sub-committee should not be obstructive and that a
one-off fee of £250 was reasonable and could be reviewed when the lease was
renewed.
Councillor Patterson expressed concern about noise in the park as she did not agree
with the use of amplified music. She stressed the importance of volume control
when events were taking place.
The sub-committee felt that there was not a need to use the Council events team for
these types of events and noted that the café had the necessary insurance in place.
The Parks and Bereavement Services Manager highlighted the risks relating to the
use of gazebos and bouncy castles.
RESOLVED:
(1) To agree to the use of the patio area by the Alice Park Café for a one off fee
of £250 per annum for up to 10 uses in a one-year period.
(2) To agree that this should be reviewed at the time when the lease is next
renewed.

12

ALICE PARK FOOTPATHS UPDATE
The sub-committee considered a report regarding the provision of additional
footpaths in Alice Park to connect the existing pathways and allow circular walking.

4

Page 10

It was noted that CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy) funding had been approved by
the Cabinet Member for Development and Neighbourhoods which would provide a
sum of £43k for the footpath project. It was noted that additional paths would
increase maintenance costs that were currently not budgeted for.
Members discussed the possible location for new paths, specifically whether the
paths should go behind or in front of the tennis courts. Advice could be obtained
from the B&NES Highways Department regarding potential contractors. It would be
important to ensure that best value was obtained for the work and three quotes
would have to be put forward. Overall members felt that this was a scheme that
would enhance the park and create improvements for park users.
Members thanked Councillor Appleyard for submitting the application for CIL
funding.
RESOLVED: To further discuss the provision of additional footpaths at the
forthcoming site visit to Alice Park.
13

POND AREA UPDATE
The sub-committee considered a report regarding the refurbishment of the pond in
Alice Park. There was already a management plan that considered the pond
objectively alongside all other improvements. The pond is very barren and is
afforded very little maintenance in the current Service Level Agreement work
schedule.
Councillor Norton was opposed to the pond being filled in to provide a boules area.
Councillor Appleyard felt that the current pond was not fit for purpose and could be
relocated. He noted that the boules area was a very well used facility which
attracted people to the park.
Councillor Patterson stated that the pond was very popular with park users. She
was opposed to it being removed or relocated.
Paul Hooper was also opposed to the removal of the pond and, in any case, felt that
the view of the local community should be sought before any action was taken.
RESOLVED: To discuss this matter further on the forthcoming site visit to Alice
Park.

14

PEST CONTROL
The Parks and Bereavement Services Manager stated that he would arrange for the
wasps nest near the tennis courts to be removed.

15

REPLACEMENT OF PLAY AREA SIGNS
The current play area signs needed to be replaced and a rebranding exercise was
being considered to reflect the fact that the park is run by the Alice Park Trust. New
designs would be circulated to sub-committee members for their consideration.
5

Page 11

16

WASTE BIN COLLECTION IN ALICE PARK
The Chair reported that he had received an email expressing concern that waste
collected from Alice Park was not recycled. Members of the Sub-Committee were
keen to ensure that as much waste as possible was recycled. It was suggested that
a bottle recycling container would be helpful.
Mark Cassidy, Parks and Bereavement Services Manager, explained that often the
waste collected from public bins was very polluted and not suitable for recycling.
RESOLVED: To receive a report to a future meeting regarding park waste recycling.

17

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To note that the next meeting will take place on Monday 22 October 2018 at 6pm.

The meeting ended at 7.45 pm
Chair
Date Confirmed and Signed
Prepared by Democratic Services

6

Page 12

ALICE PARK TRUST COMMITTEE
ALICE PARK PLAN DEVELOPMENT - 7 JULY 2018
This is the amalgamation and summary of all the ideas recorded from the Trustees visit to the park last Saturday. It forms the
basis for our plan going forward. Most items were agreed in common by all three groups but those items in red are not agreed
and need resolution. Priorities also need discussion.
OVERALL AIM OF THE PLAN

Page 13

The overall aim of this plan is to:
• Increase use of the park through improving quality and range of facilities
• Enhance and feature the heritage of the park to create interest and volunteering
• Improve housekeeping and maintenance
• Close the gap between costs and income to make park more sustainable
• Improve disability access
This will be achieved by reinforcing the park's 1930 heritage and brand, clearly highlighting the current and future facilities and
agreeing a clear marketing plan and communication strategy to work alongside this re-development plan.

Know contribution funding is available with immediate effect. The LTA fund is being negotiated.

Agenda Item 8

FUNDING
A total of £170,000 is available to the park as follows:
• £25,000 for park improvements
• £43,000 for pathways from CIL
• £72,000 for the skate park and a further local community contribution of £30,000 making a total of £102,000
• An unknown fund as part of BANES wide development of tennis facilities by the LTA and BANES CIL

AREA

REF

SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENT

Entrance

1

Regular sweeping and strimming around entrance gates, fences and X
car park, regular litter picking. Ensure all fly-posting on railings is
removed. Measures to prevent weed growth.

2

Renew line marking for all bays including Disabled bay.

3

Notice board(s) to be moved inside park before pathways and made
weatherproof/enclosed.

Page 14

Benches

Shelter

UPKEEP

MAINT DEV

PRIORIT
Y
A

X

B
X

A

PARK STRCTURES & FIXTURES
4

Refurbish all benches in need of repairs and replacement. To
include replacement of rotted wooden slats. Repair the flagstone
plinths to benches against hedging in the memorial area.

X

5

Re-site the 2 benches adjacent to the cycle area to face the cycle
area, use shade where possible.

X

A

6

Consider installation of 2-3 BBQ benches around the park.

X

B

7

Repair roof tilling and timber structure and repaint with agreed
Alice Park heritage coloured gloss paint.

X

A

A

Pathways

Tennis Hut

Page 15

Waste
Collection
Bins

8

Join up pathways around back of tennis courts and in front of
Boules area. Provide short paths to neared benches for disabled
access. Carry out pathway repairs as necessary to ensure smooth
surface.

9

Consider a guard across the path in the interest of safety at the
southern entrance to park.

10

Repair and upgrade tennis hut in the interests of safety and to
prevent further deterioration. Alternatively, wait for the LTA deal.

X

A

X

A

X

Standardise all waste bins, replace burnt out bin. Consider a waste
segregation to facilitate recycling.
Consider upgrading of the dog bins or repainting, rebranding.

X

B

X

X

B

B

PARK HERITAGE

Park
Heritage
Map

Consider annotated map of the park with keep feature and
historical interest.

Heritage
Signage

Repair bent bronze Alice MacVicar sign and replace supporting
cross member.

Lilly Pond

Restore pond water circulation, top up water, improve planting to
cool water. Alternatively, consider moving of pond and replacement
by Boules Terrain. This is not agreed by all trustees and will need
further consideration and discussion.

X

X

A

A
X

B

Lilly Pond
Area

X

B

Consider a historical information board on Col W B Ritchie DSO
adjacent to the Lilly Pond.

X

A

WW1
Monument

Improve this feature so the plaque can be read. Upgrade the flower
beds to raised beds, to be maintained by local volunteers.

X

B

Memorial
to
Suffragette
s

Re-align memorial stone so the plaque can be read and consider
provision of an information board.

X

B

Flag Pole

Consider a flag pole as required by park transfer covenant and
purchase suitable logo flag to be flown on Alice MacVicar's
birthday.

X

A

Park Brand

Replacing all signage with AP branding from BANES branding to
establish and reinforce the park heritage.

Page 16

Consider fencing across the area to the pond to create a quiet area,
improve child safety and keep dogs out. Consider flower beds
adjacent to fencing looked after by volunteers.

PARK FACILITIES
Toilets

Re-paint/touch up marked entrance doors. Make repairs to
woodwork near water tap.
Consider free access to toilets? Needs discussion with Officers in
respect to BANES contract arrangements.

X

A
X

Cycle
Circuit

Re-line direction white lining

X

A

Consider installation of road signs to enhance learning potential

X

B

Upgrade play equipment with installation of new piece of
equipment in the circular bark covered area. Consider a water play
feature.

X

A

Increase seating/benches in the play area.

X

A

MultiGym/Rustic
Adventure
Play Area

Consider installation of a fitness trainer and/or Rustic Adventure
Play Area on little used A4 road area adjacent to kids cycle area.

X

B

Tennis
Courts

Continue to pursue upgrade opportunity with LTA with
development of a Plan B if this does not materialise. This might
include creation of a multi-sport area within one of the courts.
Needs further discussion.

X

A

Boules
Terrain

Increase the size of the terrain as requested by Bath Boules.

X

B

Play Area

Page 17

Skate Park

Consider moving this to the pond area. This will need further
discussion as it is not agreed by all Trustees or Bath Boules who
have commented that they would ideally rather be closer to the
cafe.

X

A

Construct Skate Park in South West corner of park below play area.

X

A

This area is funded from the skate park fund and will include:
• Its segregation from the existing play area by fencing
• Creation of a new park entrance
• Any alterations to paths of gates

X

A

PARK AGRONOMY
Page 18

Hedges and
Boundary
Bush
Planting

Improve the up keep of hedges and boundary planting, weed out
brambles and alien plants and weeds. Consider use of volunteers.

X

Pathways
and edges
of tennis
courts

Weeding current pathways and maintain weed free, apply weedkiller.

X

Shrub beds
near toilets

Encourage Cafe to take on this and improve and maintain them.

X

A

X

B

Agenda Item 9
Bath & North East Somerset Council
MEETING/
DECISION
MAKER:

Charitable Trust Board Committee – Alice Park Sub-Committee
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:

MEETING/
DECISION
DATE:

22 October 2018

TITLE:

Alice Park – Statement of Accounts 2017/18

WARD:

Lambridge
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
1. Statement of Accounts to 31st March 2018
2. Trustees’ Annual Report to 31st March 2018
3. Independent Examiners Review (Still to be reviewed)
4. Charity Commission Reporting – Extract of Accounting Requirements
5. Conveyance of Alice Park Trust
6. Last Will and Testament of HM Macvicar

1

THE ISSUE
1.1 To agree the Statement of Accounts for Alice Park Trust for year ending 31st
March 2018. (Appendix 1.)
1.2 To agree the Annual report for Alice Park Trust for year ending 31st March 2018.
(Appendix 2.)

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 Agree and sign the financial statements of Alice Park Trust for year ending 31st
March 2018 and their submission to the Charity Commission.
2.2 Agree and sign the annual report for Alice Park Trust year ending 31st March
2018 and submission to the Charity Commission.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 19

3

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)
3.1 Expenditure incurred for Alice Park Trust in 2016/17 was £39,207; this was offset
by income of £17,225 and a donation from Bath & North East Somerset Council
of £21981. (Appendix 1.)
3.2 The cost of donations to the Trust to the Council in 2017/18 has been met
through existing budgets within the Parks department, to ensure the Trust
operates on a going concern basis. This is the same process that has been
undertaken in previous years.
3.3 Net Assets of the Trust are valued at a cost of £189,757. Net assets include
investments held, land at Alice Park, car park, cottage number one, tea chalet
and storage shed, public conveniences, tennis courts, garden shelter and play
equipment.
3.4 The accounts for 2017/18 have been prepared by the Council’s Finance team
and are still to be reviewed by the Audit West Team.
3.5 The accounts for the Trust are prepared on a cash basis, in line with reporting
requirements and guidelines issued by the Charity Commission. (Appendix 4.)

4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
4.1 The Charity Commission has a framework summarising the main requirements
for charities to produce an annual return, a set of accounts and an annual report.
4.2 Where a registered charity has a gross yearly income exceeding £25,000 they
are required to submit an annual return form, the accounts of the Trust and a
Trustees’ annual report.
4.3 Accounts must be subject to outside scrutiny but Trustees may choose either
independent examination or audit by a registered auditor.
4.4 Legal requirements for annual reports are underpinned by recommendations
made in the Charities Regulations 2008 taken from the Charity SORP 2005. A
pro-forma charity Trustees' annual report has been taken from the Charity
Commission website and used to complete the report.
4.5 Returns to the Charity Commission must be sent within 10 months of the end of
your financial year (31st January.)
4.1 Failure to submit accounts and accompanying documents to the commission is a
criminal offence. The commission also regards it as mismanagement or
misconduct in the administration of the charity. Providing timely, accurate and
informative financial information that will help funders, donors, beneficiaries and
others to understand your charity and its work will encourage trust and
confidence in it. Those trustees who sign the trustees’ annual report and
accounts are signing on behalf of the whole trustee body so all of the trustees
are responsible for the accounts.

5

THE REPORT

5.1 Rental incomes are achieved through the lease of Cottage No.1 and the lease
of the tea chalet, consisting of the main building and shed / storage.
Page 20
Printed on recycled paper

5.2 Tennis court income is collected by the café at Alice Park and transferred to the
Council.
5.3 Investment income is achieved through balances held with the Charities Official
Investment Fund (COIF) and Majedie Asset Management Limited. These
investments were made as part of the original conveyance and Will and
Testament, as bequeathed by H M Macvicar. (Appendix 5 and 6.)
5.4 Maintenance and inspection works for the grounds, site, play equipment, tennis
court, public toilets and trees are all managed by the Parks and Property
Maintenance teams through a formal SLA agreed during 2016/17.
6

RATIONALE
6.1 The Trust is required to sign off accounts and an annual report prior to
submission to the Charities Commission every year.

7

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
7.1 None – we are required by legislation to submit to the Charities Commission due
to the level of income being generated by the Trust.

8

CONSULTATION
8.1 S151 and Monitoring Officer have had opportunity to review and input into this
report.

9

RISK MANAGEMENT
9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance.

Contact person

Edward Dawson Edward_dawson@bathnes.gov.iuk
Tel: 01225 396363

Background papers

Charity Commission website:
Charity reporting and the essentials:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/charity-reporting-andaccounting-the-essentials-march-2015-cc15c/charity-reporting-andaccounting-the-essentials-march-2015
The essential Trustee – what you need to know:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-essential-trustee-whatyou-need-to-know-cc3
Guidance to preparing annual reports:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prepare-a-charity-trustees-annualreport#about-charity-trustees-annual-reports
Prepare a Trustees annual report:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prepare-a-charity-trustees-annual-report

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Alice Park

304650

Receipts and payments accounts
For the period
from

01/04/2017

CC16a

31/03/2018

To

The Alice Park Trust is reliant upon annual donations from BANES Council to cover the cost of maintenance for the park
in order to maintain a going concern status
Section A Receipts and payments
Unrestricted
funds
to the nearest
£
A1 Receipts
Rental Incomes
Tennis Court Income
Events Income
Investment Income
Donations
Income - compound interest
Income - grant in kind
Sub total (Gross income for AR)

1,103
1,577
760

Restricted
funds
to the nearest
£

Endowment
funds
to the nearest
£

Total funds

Last year

to the nearest
£

to the nearest
£

13,741

14,845
1,577
760
44
21,981
39,207

44

21,981
25,421

13,785

Sub total

-

-

-

Total receipts

25,421

13,785

-

-

-

A2 Asset and investment sales, (see
table).

A3 Payments
Grounds Maintenance SLA
Play Equipment Maintenance SLA
Tree Management SLA
Tennis Court maintenance
Bin & Bench replacement
Public Conveniences Maintenance
Property Maintiance Fees
Other - Audit Fees

10,652
8,080
2,252
13,557
4,445
220

-

39,207

Sub total

-

39,207

-

10,652
8,080
2,252
13,557
4,445
220
39,207

-

-

-

-

-

A4 Asset and investment purchases,
(see table)

Sub total

-

-

-

Total payments

39,207

-

-

13,785
13,785

13,785
-

-

Net of receipts/(payments) A5 Transfers between funds
A6 Cash funds last year end
Cash funds this year end -

-

-

39,207

-

0

-

-

-

13,785

-

0

Section B Statement of assets and liabilities at the end of the period
Categories
B1 Cash funds

Unrestricted
funds
to nearest £

Details

Restricted
funds
to nearest £

Endowment
funds
to nearest £

Funds - previously invested in
3.5% war stock

-

Funds - previously invested in
3.5% war stock
Funds - previously invested in
2.5% consolidated stock

-

Total cash funds
CCXX R1 accounts (SS)

(agree balances with receipts
and payments
account(s))
Page 123

Agreement
Error

Agreement
Error

OK

13/06/2018

B3 Investment assets

Fund to which
asset belongs

Cost
(optional)

Details
COIF - charities deposit account
965060001C - 32911/04

Unrestricted

4,880

Majedi Investments PLC

Unrestricted

756

COIF special range
951170001C - 32911/05
COIF special range 115410001C

Unrestricted

884

Current value
(optional)

Unrestricted
11843

B4 Assets retained for the charity’s
own use

Signed by one or two trustees on behalf
of all the trustees

CCXX R2 accounts (SS)

Fund to which
asset belongs

Cost
(optional)

Details
Land at Alice Park

Unrestricted

54,000

Property - cottage one

Unrestricted

33,000

Tea Chalet & Storage

Unrestricted

4,000

Car Park

Unrestricted

2,500

Toilets - Land & Buildings

Unrestricted

27,000

Tennis Courts

Unrestricted

18,750

Garden Shelter

Unrestricted

14,250

Play Equipment

Unrestricted

17,893

Signature

2
Page
24

Print Name

Current value
(optional)

Date of
approval

13/06/2018

Trustees' Annual Report for the period
From

Section A

Period start date
01
04

2017

To

Period end date
31
03

2018

Reference and administration details
Charity name Alice Park Trust

Other names charity is known by Alice Park
Registered charity number (if any) 304650
Charity's principal address Bath and North East Somerset Council
Guildhall
High Street
Bath
Postcode

BA1 5AW

Names of the charity trustees who manage the charity
Trustee name

Office (if any)

Dates acted if not for whole
year

Name of person (or body) entitled
to appoint trustee (if any)

1 Cllr Tim Warren
2 Cllr Michael Norton.

1st April – 6th Dec 2016

3 Cllr Rob Appleyard
4

Cllr Geoff Ward

6th December 2017
onwards

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
Names of the trustees for the charity, if any, (for example, any custodian trustees)
Name

TAR

Dates acted if not for whole year

Page 25
1

March 2012

Names and addresses of advisers (Optional information)
Type of adviser

Name

Address

Name of chief executive or names of senior staff members (Optional information)

Section B

Structure, governance and management

Description of the charity’s trusts
Type of governing document
Trust Conveyance & Trust Deed
(eg. trust deed, constitution)
How the charity is constituted
(eg. trust, association, company)

Trustee selection methods
(eg. appointed by, elected by)

Trust
Trustees comprise of the Leader of Bath & North East Somerset Council
and Trustees elected as part of the Council’s charitable trust board subcommittee for Alice Park.

Additional governance issues (Optional information)
You may choose to include
additional information, where
relevant, about:
 policies and procedures
adopted for the induction and
training of trustees;
 the charity’s organisational
structure and any wider
network with which the charity
works;
 relationship with any related
parties;
 trustees’ consideration of
major risks and the system
and procedures to manage
them.

Section C

TAR

Objectives and activities

Page 26
2

March 2012

Summary of the objects of the
charity set out in its
governing document

The key object of the charity is that the Alice Park is to be used as a
public park as a memorial to the wife of Herbert Montgomerie MacVicar
of Batheaston.

The trustees, in making decisions surrounding the objectives and
activities of the charity, have regard to the Charities Commission public
benefit guidance when exercising any powers or duties to which the
guidance is relevant.
The park was open for public access throughout the year, including use
of the tennis courts and tea chalet, and has been suitably maintained.
The cottage property was let and the income used in the upkeep of the
Park.
Summary of the main
activities undertaken for the
public benefit in relation to
these objects (include within
this section the statutory
declaration that trustees have
had regard to the guidance
issued by the Charity
Commission on public
benefit)

Additional details of objectives and activities (Optional information)

TAR

Page 27
3

March 2012

You may choose to include
further statements, where
relevant, about:
 policy on grantmaking;
 policy programme related
investment;
 contribution made by
volunteers.

Section D

TAR

Achievements and performance

Page 28
4

March 2012

Section D

Achievements and performance

Summary of the main
achievements of the charity
during the year

TAR

Page 29
5

March 2012

Section E

Financial review

Brief statement of the
charity’s policy on reserves

The charity does not currently have sufficient funding to enable reserves
as the contribution from Bath & North East Somerset is exactly equivalent
to the required costs for the financial year.
Should the trust have reserves in future years then they would be
managed within the same processes as those held by Bath & North East
Somerset and as prescribed by their financial regulations.
Reserves that are restricted would be held specifically for the required
purpose and unrestricted reserves would be held for the general support
of the Trust.

Details of any funds materially
in deficit
Further financial review details (Optional information)
You may choose to include
additional information, where
relevant about:
 the charity’s principal
sources of funds (including
any fundraising);


how expenditure has
supported the key objectives
of the charity;



investment policy and
objectives including any
ethical investment policy
adopted.

The Alice Park was funded through incomes raised through the activities
of the charity and from contribution made by Bath & North East Somerset
Council.

Section F

Other optional information

Section G

Declaration

The trustees declare that they have approved the trustees’ report above.
Signed on behalf of the charity’s trustees
Signature(s)

TAR

Page 30
6

March 2012

Full name(s)
Position (eg Secretary, Chair,
etc)
Date

TAR

25rd June 2018

Page 31
7

March 2012

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix four – Extract of accounting requirements per Charities Commission
website.
4.1.2 Charities with a gross income of over £25,000 but not exceeding £250,000 in
the relevant financial year (legal requirement)
Basis of preparation: accounts must be prepared either on the receipts and payments
or the accruals basis; if on an accruals basis, they must be prepared in accordance with
the 2008 Regulations and the applicable SORP. The commission provides packs for
receipts and payments or accrual accounting by non-company charities which are
available through GOV.UK. These provide a template to produce accounts in the
required form.
External scrutiny: accounts must be subject to outside scrutiny but trustees may
choose either independent examination or audit by a registered auditor, unless the
charity’s governing document stipulates one or the other. In exceptional
circumstances, the commission has the power to require an audit.
Type of trustees’ annual report: a trustees’ annual report must be prepared but it may
be simplified (see section 7).
Information to be sent to the commission: these charities must complete an annual
return. The named charity contact on the commission’s records will receive an annual
return notification. Submission of the annual return is online.
The annual return, trustees’ annual report and accounts must be filed with the
commission, within 10 months of the end of the charity’s financial year.
Full document details can be found here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/charity-reporting-and-accountingthe-essentials-march-2015-cc15c

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Bath & North East Somerset Council
MEETING/
DECISION
MAKER:

Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:

MEETING/
DECISION
DATE:

22 October 2018

TITLE:

Draft Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee – Annual Report 2017/18

WARD:

Lambridge

N/A

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM
List of attachments to this report: Draft Annual Report – Appendix 1

1

THE ISSUE
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Charitable Trust Board
on the work of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee during the past year.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 The Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee is asked to consider and comment on the
draft report attached as an Appendix. The report will then be circulated to the
members of the Charitable Trust Board.

3

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)
3.1 The implications are set out in the draft annual report.

4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
4.1 The terms of reference of the Charitable Trust Board require it to receive an
annual report from the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee after submitting any
annual report to the Charity Commissioners.

5

THE REPORT
5.1 A draft annual report is attached as an appendix for comment and approval by
the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 47

6

RATIONALE

6.1 The Charitable Trust Board is required to receive reports from the Trusts listed in
Schedule 1 of its Terms of Reference (for which the Council is sole corporate
trustee).
7

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 None.
8

CONSULTATION

8.1 The Section151 and Monitoring Officer have had opportunity to review and input
into this report.
9

RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance.

Contact person
Background papers

Marie Todd, Democratic Services Officer –
Marie_Todd@bathnes.gov.uk 01225 394414
None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 48

Bath & North East Somerset Council
MEETING/
DECISION
MAKER:

Charitable Trust Board
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:

MEETING/
DECISION
DATE:

N/A

TITLE:

Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee – Annual Report

WARD:

Lambridge

N/A

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM
List of attachments to this report: None

1

THE ISSUE
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Charitable Trust Board on the work of
the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee during the past year.

2

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 The Charitable Trust Board is asked to note the report.

3

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)
3.1 Expenditure incurred for Alice Park Trust in 2017/18 was £39,207; this was offset
by income of £17,225 and a donation from Bath & North East Somerset Council
of £21,981.
3.2 The cost of donations to the Trust to the Council in 2017/18 has been met
through existing budgets within the Parks department, to ensure the Trust
operates on a going concern basis. This is the same process that has been
undertaken in previous years.
3.3 Net Assets of the Trust are valued at a cost of £189,757. Net assets include
investments held, land at Alice Park, car park, cottage number one, tea chalet
and storage shed, public conveniences, tennis courts, garden shelter and play
equipment.
3.4 The accounts for 2017/18 have been prepared by the Council’s Finance team
and will shortly be reviewed by the Audit West Team.

3.5 The accounts for the Trust are prepared on a cash basis, in line with reporting
requirements and guidelines issued by the Charity Commission.
Page 49
Printed on recycled paper

3.6 An annual report for the Trust was also approved at the meeting on 22 October
2018 and has been submitted to the Charity Commission.
3.7 The returns to the Charity Commission were sent within the required timescale
i.e. within 10 months of the end of the financial year (31 January.)
3.8 The park was open for public access throughout the year, including use of the
tennis courts and tea chalet, and has been suitably maintained. The cottage
property was let and the income used in the upkeep of the park.
4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
4.1 The terms of reference of the Charitable Trust Board require it to receive an
annual report from the Trust Sub-Committee after submitting any annual report
to the Charity Commissioners.
4.2 The trustees, in making decisions surrounding the objectives and activities of the
charity, have regard to the Charities Commission public benefit guidance when
exercising any powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.

5

THE REPORT
5.1 Meetings and Membership
5.1.1 The Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee has met 5 times since the last annual
report.
5.1.2 Two independent non-voting members were appointed to the SubCommittee in October 2016, in line with its terms of reference. One of
these members resigned in March 2018 and a new independent member
was appointed in July 2018.
5.1.3 In October 2017 Cllr Michael Norton stood down as Chair of the SubCommittee and Cllr Geoff Ward was elected Chair.
5.2

Activities Undertaken

5.2.1 The Sub-Committee has continued to discuss the provision of a skatepark
in Alice Park and has now decided to proceed with this project having
agreed a brief setting out the location and parameters for the facility.
5.2.2 A fees and charges policy has also been agreed along with a schedule of
rates for events held in the park.
5.2.3 Terms and fees have been agreed to enable organised youth football to
take place in the park.
5.2.4 A stamp has been installed in the park, in conjunction with the Council’s
Active Lifestyles Team, to encourage families to visit the park and to be
more active.
5.2.5 The sandpit in the children’s play area has been replenished.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 50

5.2.6 The Trust was delighted to be awarded CIL funding of £43k to provide two
sections of additional paths to create connections and to allow circular
travel around the park.
5.2.7 In July members held a site visit in the park to discuss and review the
current management plan. Following this meeting they drew up a revised
development plan setting out the agreed priorities for maintenance and
upgrading of the park. This includes proposals such as the refurbishment
of the pond area and the development of the boules and tennis court areas.
The erection of a flagpole is also planned and this will enable a flag to be
flown on Alice MacVicar’s birthday each year as required by the terms of
the original conveyance.. The revised plan will lead to a more strategic
approach to maintenance within the park with clear priorities agreed by the
Trust members.
5.2.8

The overall aim of the development plan is to:


Increase use of the park through improving quality and range of
facilities



Enhance and feature the heritage of the park to create interest and
volunteering



Improve housekeeping and maintenance



Close the gap between costs and income to make park more
sustainable



Improve disability access

This will be achieved by reinforcing the park's 1930 heritage and brand,
clearly highlighting the current and future facilities and agreeing a clear
marketing plan and communication strategy to work alongside the redevelopment plan.
6

RATIONALE
6.1 The Charitable Trust Board is required to receive reports from the Trusts listed
in Schedule 1 of its Terms of Reference (for which the Council is sole
corporate trustee).

7

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
7.1 None.

8

CONSULTATION
8.1 The Section151 and Monitoring Officer have had opportunity to review and
input into this report.

9

RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk
management guidance.
Page 51
Printed on recycled paper

Contact person
Background papers

Marie Todd, Democratic Services Officer –
Marie_Todd@bathnes.gov.uk 01225 394414
None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 52

